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first ask this item be removed from the Foot of the
Calendar.
THE CHAIR:
Without objection.
SEN. JEPSEN:
And I would at this time move to the Consent
Calendar, Calendar 528, HB5107.
THE CHAIR:
Senator Smith.

Senator Smith.

There's objection

to placing this item on the Consent Calendar.

Would you

care to proceed, Senator Jepsen.
SEN. JEPSEN:
Yes, I would have this item be passed temporarily.
I would ask at this time, turning to Page 10, Calendar
246, SB160 I would move this item to the Consent
Calendar.
THE CHAIR:
Without objection, so ordered.
SEN. JEPSEN:
If the Clerk at this time could call the first of
the bills I requested, Page 14,

Calendar 317.

THE CLERK:
Turning to Calendar Page 14, matter previously
S b S d S

removed from, the Foot of the Calendar, Calendar 317,
File 422, Substitute for SB515 An Act Making Changes to
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Various Sales and Use Tax Statutes And The Admissions
and Dues Tax Statutes.

Favorable Report of the

Committee on Finance, Revenue and Bonding.

The Clerk is

in possession of amendments.
SEN. LOONEY:
Mr. President.
THE CHAIR:
Senator Looney.
SEN. LOONEY:
Thank you, Mr. President.

Mr. President, I move

acceptance of the Joint Committee's Favorable Report and
passage of the bill.
THE CHAIR:
Motion is on adoption.

Will you remark?

SEN. LOONEY:
Thank you, Mr. President.

The Clerk has in his

possession an amendment, LC05933.

If the Clerk may

please call that amendment.
THE CHAIR:
Mr. Clerk.

Senator Looney, would you call the

amendment that you wish again?
SEN. LOONEY:
Excuse me.

Yes.

Mr. President, it should be 5933.

THE CLERK:
Mr. President, I have 5333.

I do not have 5933.
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SEN. LOONEY:
That may be correct.

The fiscal note that we have

says 59, but the actual text of the amendment says 53,
so it is in fact, 5333.
THE CHAIR:
Marked down from 5933.

(Laughter)

THE CLERK:
LC05333 which will be designated Senate Amendment
Schedule "A".

It is offered by Senator Looney of the

11th District.
THE CHAIR:
Senator Looney.
SEN. LOONEY:
Thank you, Mr. President.

Mr. President, in view

of the fact that this amendment is 91 pages and 3,005
lines in length, I will move adoption and ask leave to
summarize rather than have the Clerk read the amendment.
THE CHAIR:
Motion is for adoption.

Request to summarize.

Please proceed.
SEN. LOONEY:
Thank you, Mr. President.

This amendment strikes

the language of the bill and removes the fiscal impact
of the state in the original file copy.

A number of

sections do have some fiscal impact that provide for a
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revenue gain or precluding revenue gain or causing a
revenue loss, a future revenue loss and so on.
Some of the ones that I will point out are in
Sections 1, 2 and 3 of the bill, or the amendment, will
provide for an annual revenue gain to the sales and uses
tax as a result of changing when the tax is applied to
prepaid phone cards and it's estimated to generate
$100,000 to $300,000 in revenue per year.
Section 9 of the amendment also precludes a minimal
revenue gain as a result of clarifying an exemption for
food products and meats sold at educational institutions
and health care facilities in order to resolve a
compliance issue.
In addition, Mr. President, there is a section of
the bill that clarifies the definition of patient care
services and computer data processing services to
preclude a potential revenue loss.
Also, it has clarifying language preventing a
revenue loss to the sales and use tax as a result of an
amendment conforming the commercial fishing
qualifications for sales and use exemptions and places
those into conformance with the farmer's sales tax
exemption.

Therefore, this would result in a minimal

revenue loss.
In addition, Mr. President, there is a provision

I
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for a possible future revenue loss in five to ten years
of about a million dollars per year as a result of
allowing insurance companies to offset 100% of payments
to the life and health insurance guarantee fund or their
property casualty insurance guarantee fund against their
premium tax liability.

Current law allows insurers to

offset 50% of payments made into that fund against their
liability.
In addition, Mr. President, there is a section
which will change the effective date of repayment of a
loan by CERMA, a municipal organization, that had been

i:

due on July 1, 2000.

i

It will provide that the repayment

shall be made by June 30, 2001, so that the payment will
occur within the same fiscal year but gives them to the
end of the year to make arrangements for that through
refinance or whatever other methods they will undertake.
There is also a revenue gain of about $200,000 to
the tobacco products tax as a result of imposing the tax
on snuff, 40 cents per ounce.

This clarifies an action

that was taken in SB523 last evening.
Thank you, Mr. President.
THE CHAIR:
Thank you, Senator Looney.

It doesn't get much

more interesting than that, I must say.
Nickerson.

Senator
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SEN. NICKERSON:
Well, we'll try to make it even more interesting.
First, I agree with Senator Looney's comment that
appears, and this is extremely rare that the fiscal note
is misnumbered and does indeed relate to LC05333.
THE CHAIR:
We're going to call for an investigation on that
point.
SEN. NICKERSON:
I said I'd make it interesting, Mr. President, so I
thought I'd start off on the right foot.
Yes.

First of all, I do want to again, I know this

sounds like a repetition, but perhaps that's not so
interesting but it still should be said.

This has been

carefully reviewed by caucus leaders, OPM and myself and
concur in Senator Looney's comments that by and large it
is a technical implementation of necessary changes to
the tax laws with no major substantive problems.

No

major substantive initiatives in it.
I do want to again particularly thank Senator
Looney for his concurrence with my and other suggestions
that some very minor tax wrinkles in the interstices of
the tax code be resolved.

This does that as do many

implementors and it's a fine bill, Mr. President.
THE CHAIR:
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Is there anyone who wishes to further explore the
interstices of this bill?

If not, Senator Looney.

Do

you wish a roll call on this?
SEN. LOONEY:
I believe that might expedite matters, Mr.
President.

Thank you.

THE CHAIR:
Fine.

If there is no one else to comment, the

Clerk will please announce a roll call vote.

The

machine will be opened.
THE CLERK:
An immediate roll call has been ordered in the
Senate.

Will all Senators please return to the Chamber.

An immediate roll call has been ordered in the
Senate.

Will all Senators please return to the Chamber.

THE CHAIR:
Senator Herlihy?
Senator Penn?

Senator Somma?

Senator McDermott?

Have all members voted?
Penn.

Senator Gunther?

Senator Gunther.

If not, the machine will be closed.

Gunther.

There we go.

Senator

Senator

The machine will be closed.

The

Clerk will announce the tally.
THE CLERK:
Motion is on passage of SB525 as amended.
Total number voting, 36.

Those voting "yea", 36;
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those voting "nay", 0.

Those absent and not voting, 0.

THE CHAIR:
The bill is passed.__ Senator Jepsen.
SEN. JEPSEN:
Thank you, Mr. President.

I move for immediate

transmittal of this item to the House of
Representatives.
THE CHAIR:
Hearing no objection, so ordered.
THE CLERK:
If the Clerk could call the next item which I
believe is Page 15, Calendar 325.
THE CHAIR:
Mr. Clerk.
THE CLERK:
Calendar Page 15, Matter Previously Moved From the
Foot.

Calendar 325, File 421, SB392 An Act Transferring

Enforcement Of The Set Aside Program From The Department
Of Economic And Community Development

To the Department

of Administrative Services And The Commission On Human
Rights And Opportunities.

Favorable Report of the

Committees on Planning and Development, Judiciary,
Government Administration and Elections, Appropriations,
and Commerce.
THE CHAIR:

The Clerk is in possession of amendments.
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THE CHAIR:
Is there any objection?
Consent Calendar.

The item is placed on the

Mr. Clerk, do we have further

business?
THE CLERK:
Mr. President, I would defer to the Majority
Leader.
THE CHAIR:
Senator Jepsen.
SEN. JEPSEN:
Does that sound good?
THE CHAIR:
It's not bad.
SEN. JEPSEN:
Mr. President, before going to the Public Health
implementer, we have a couple of procedural motions and
a brief reconsideration to make sure that what we did
technically was correct.

If I could yield please to

Senator Looney.
THE CHAIR:
Thank you, Senator.

Senator Looney.

Do you accept

the yield, Sir?
SEN. LOONEY:
Yes, thank you, Mr. President.

I would move

reconsideration of SB525 that we previously voted on.

I
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believe we may not have formally adopted the amendment
that became the bill.
THE CHAIR:
Thank you, Senator.

Motion on reconsideration.

All those in favor please signify by -- without
objection, it is so ordered.
Senator Looney.
SEN. LOONEY:
Yes, thank you, Mr. President.

Mr. President, then

I would move the bill.
THE CLERK:
Returning to Calendar Page 2, recalling Calendar
391, File 597, Substitute for SB140 An Act Concerning
The Authorization Of Bonds Of The State For Capital
Improvements And Other Purposes.

Favorable Report of

the Committee on Finance, Revenue and Bonding.
When the bill was last before us, LC05333 was
designated Senate Amendment Schedule "A".
THE CHAIR:
Senator Looney.
SEN. LOONEY:
If we might PT this a moment, Mr. President.
THE CHAIR:
So ordered.
Mr. Clerk.
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THE CLERK:
Correction.

It's Calendar Page 14, Calendar 317,

File 422, Substitute for SB525 An Act Making Changes To
Various Sales And Use Tax Statutes And The Admissions
And Dues Tax Statutes.

Favorable Report of the

Committee on Finance, Revenue and Bonding.

When the

matter was last before us, LC05333 was designated Senate
Amendment Schedule "A".
THE CHAIR:
Senator Looney.
,

SEN. LOONEY:
Yes, thank you.

Thank you, Mr. President.

I would

move, if the bill is before us, I would move acceptance
of the Joint Committee's Favorable Report and passage of
the bill.
THE CHAIR:
May I have your attention, please.

It's getting

very difficult for the people who are responsible for
recording different motions and our staff to hear what's
going on, so if you have any conversations, please take
them out to the hallway.
If you're here, you know, please do not continue
any conversations so we can give due respect to the
Senator who is speaking and to enable our staff to
proceed with their work.
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We realize it's getting close to that time.

We

have an awful lot more business to continue and we'd
appreciate every courtesy.
Senator Looney, if there is no objection to the
motion, please proceed.
SEN. LOONEY:
Yes, thank you, Mr. President.

I would move

acceptance of the Joint Committee's Favorable Report and
passage of the bill.
THE CHAIR:
So moved.
SEN. LOONEY:
And Mr. President, I would ask the Clerk to please
call an amendment, LC05333 that was previously
discussed.

I would ask the Clerk to please call that

amendment and in lieu of any additional summarization
would move that amendment, Mr. President.
THE CLERK:
LC05333 which was previously designated Senate
Amendment^ Schedule "A".

It is offered by Senator Looney

of the 11th District.
THE CHAIR:
Senator Looney.
SEN. LOONEY:
Yes, thank you, Mr. President.

Since this
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amendment was discussed at length previously, I would
move its adoption.
THE CHAIR:
There's a motion for adoption.
objection?

Is there any

Will you remark further?

If not, let me try your minds.

All in favor please

indicate by saying "aye".
ASSEMBLY:
Aye.
THE CHAIR:
Opposed?

Motion is adopted._

further on the bill as adopted?

Will you remark
Senator Looney.

THE CHAIR:
Yes, Mr. President.

I would move the bill as

amended.
THE CHAIR:
Will you remark further?
roll call.

If not, we will call the

The Clerk please announce a roll call.

The

machine will be opened.
THE CLERK:
An immediate roll call has been ordered in the
Senate.

Will all Senators please return to the Chamber.

An immediate roll call has been ordered in the
Senate.

Will all Senators please return to the Chamber.

THE CHAIR:
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Senator Herlihy.

Senator Genuario.

voted and is your vote properly recorded?
will be locked.

002578

Has everybody
The machine

The vote will be announced.

The Clerk

please announce the tally.
THE CLERK:
Motion is on passage of SB525 as amended.
Total number voting, 36.
those voting "nay", 0.

Those voting "yea", 36;

Those absent and not voting, 0.

THE CHAIR:
The bill as amended is passed.
Senator Jepsen.

For immediate transmittal.

SEN. JEPSEN:
Thank you, Mr. President.

Mr. President, I move

for immediate transmittal of the item just acted upon to
the House of Representatives.
THE CHAIR:
Hearing no objection, so moved.
SEN. JEPSEN:
Mr. President, I would ask that the Clerk call from
Senate Agenda #2, the first bill listed, HB5911 which is
the Public Health implementor.
I move for suspension of the rules to take up
HB5911 from Senate Agenda No. 2.
THE CHAIR:
Hearing no objection, so moved.
<

Mr. Clerk, please
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Have all members voted?

If all the members have voted,

please check the machine.
properly recorded.
it.

Make sure your vote is

The machine will be -- let's move

Machine is going to be locked.

locked.

Clerk will take a tally.

Machine will be
Clerk will announce

the tally.
CLERK:
Senate Bill Number 140, as amended by Senate
Amendment Schedules A and B in concurrence with the
Senate.
Total Number Voting
Necessary for passage

150
76

Those Voting Yea

138

Those Voting Nay

12

Those absent and not voting

1

DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Bill passes as amended in concurrence with the
Senate.

Representative Godfrey.

REP. GODFREY:

(110th)

Mr. Speaker, I move for the suspension of our rules
for immediate consideration of House Calendar Number
570, Substitute for Senate Bill Number 525.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Question before the Chamber is for suspension of
our rules.

Seeing no objection, so ordered.

Clerk,
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please call Calendar 570.
CLERK:
Calendar 570, Substitute for Senate Bill Number
525, AN ACT MAKING CHANGES TO VARIOUS SALES AND USE TAX
STATUTES AND THE ADMISSIONS AND DUES TAX STATUTES.
Favorable Report of the Committee on Finance, Revenue
and Bonding.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Representative McDonald.
REP. MCDONALD:

(14 8th)

Yes, Mr. Speaker.

I move acceptance of the Joint

Committee's favorable report and passage of the bill.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
The question is on acceptance and passage.

Will

you remark?
REP. MCDONALD:

(148th)

Yes, Mr. Speaker.

The Clerk has LCO-5333, will he

please call and I be allowed to summarize?
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Clerk, please call LCO-5333, be designated House A.
Pardon me?

Senate A, excuse me.

CLERK:
LCO-5333, Senate Amendment Schedule A, offered by
Senator Looney.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:

006183
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Representative McDonald.
REP. MCDONALD:

(148th)

Mr. Speaker, this is essentially a strikeeverything amendment from the bill, and I move its
adoption.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
The question is on adoption of Senate A.

Will you

remark?
REP. MCDONALD:
Yes.
it.

(148th)

This is very thick bill, if any of you have

It's about over a half inch thick.

What this bill

is, is from the Department of Revenue Services.
very technical bill.

It's a

It changes a lot of different

words, different ideas.
And I didn't have copies of the Office of
Legislative Research make up a huge treaties on this
thing.

But I will share with you some of the items

that'll give you an idea of what's in the bill.
This bill exempts the following from the sales tax
non-prescription medicine for animals.

Property taken

by realtors from their inventory and donate it to
charities.
colleges.

Candy sold by college kids in their
Candy, confectioners and beverages sold to

residents in assisted care centers.
The reason a lot of these things have been
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eliminated is, they bring in about $2,400 a year.

And

the Department can't be chasing down those sums of money
at universities.
In addition, the bill requires purchasers of prepaid telephone call cards to pay the sales tax when they
buy the card, not when they use it in the telephone
booth.

Excuse me.

Next thing, extends liability for paying sales and
use tax to anyone who takes over a business that was
supposed to pay the tax.

I'm just skipping a lot of

these things because they're very technical to the
Department.

And I know time is getting short.

And so,

if you want to discuss what else is in the bill, I will
entertain the questions rather than carry you through a
seventy page bill at this time.
This is again, came from the Department of Revenue
Services, and I move adoption of Senate a.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
The question is on adoption of Senate A.
remark on Senate A?
REP. BELDEN:

Will you

Representative Belden.

(113th)

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.
a few of the items in here.
some substance.

Mr. Speaker, just to cover
Cause I think they are of

Representative McDonald talked about

the pre-paid phone cards.
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And, in fact, what happens there is, right now when
you make a call, the phone company has to keep track of
that and they pay the sales tax.

It's an administrative

nightmare both for the phone companies and for the
Department of Revenue Services under this particular
amendment before us.
When the card is sold, sales tax will be charged.
There are about seventy sections of the file before us
are purely technical changes that the DRS has asked for,
and they've been reviewed over and over again.

And

that's exactly what they are.
We will be exempting property removed by retailers
from the inventory and donated to charities.
be a minimal revenue loss.

There will

This would allow computers,

etcetera, that are not more than two years old to be
donated to charity.

And the donator will be able to

take a small tax write off for that.
We will be making a correction to the dues tax that
clears up a problem with locker rentals.
revenue loss.

Which has a

We will allow the Department of Revenue

Services to disclose information on hotel and lodging
houses data to the tourist districts.
Because they need to know what's happening and what
kind of volume of activity is occurring in those
establishments.

The amendment also enhances the ability

kmg
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of revenue connection by allowing the DRS to serve tax
warrants by e-mail or facsimile.
We clarify the definition of patient care services
and computer data processing services.

Essentially what

we're doing is moving that out for a year which will
preclude loss of $50 million in fiscal year '01.

We

will conform the fishing qualifications for sales tax
exemption to the farmers sales tax proposal.
We will also in this amendment allow farmers who
are new in business, under current legislation you have
to be a farmer for two years before you can take
advantage of some of the tax allowances that we have on
the statute.

This sets up a procedure for farmers to be

able to start taking those tax adjustments upon starting
their business.
There is an adjustment in the insurance companies
for offset of payments for life and health insurance
guarantee fund.

There are several minor adjustments.

There is a adjustment to the exempting the sales tax
from paraffin and various other waxes from the petroleum
company's gross earning's tax.
This is a situation where we're talking very minor
amounts of these particular products.

And it's a

nightmare for DRS to keep track of and to process the
various paper work.

There will be an adjustment to the
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tax on snuff.
This has been requested by a Connecticut who
produces both what's considered pure snuff, and some
other derivatives.

And this essentially will put

everybody on an even playing field.

Mr. Speaker, I

think that's roughly what is in this complementary bill
that we passed earlier today.
The many technical amendments here will allow DRS
to vastly improve their ability to serve their
customers, our taxpayers.
the amendment.

So, I would urge adoption of

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Will you remark further on Senate A?
REP. MCDONALD:

(148th)

Yes, Mr. Speaker.

I just want to thank --

DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Representative McDonald.
REP. MCDONALD:

(148th)

Representative Belden for standing up and sharing
some of the enumerations in this bill.

And I move

acceptance of the Senate A, and I urge adoption of the
bill.

Thank you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Will you remark on Senate A?
Senate A?

Representative Nardello.

Will you remark on

425

kmg

Wednesday, May 3, 2000

House of Representatives

REP. NARDELLO:

(8 9th)

Mr. Speaker, I rise for the purpose of making a
comment as to the process.

I have some concerns in the

fact that while I appreciate all the work that was done
on the amendment, and I'm sure that Representative
McDonald did a tremendous amount of work on the
committee.
It's a ninety-page amendment, without a fiscal
note, and an OLR summary.

And we are being asked to

vote on it, and to understand it in a very short period
of time.

So I do have some concerns about that that I

would like to express.

So, for those reasons I would

just ask that for process in the future that that could
be provided to us.

Thank you, and it will impact my

decision on my vote.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Will you remark further on Senate A?
remark further on Senate A?
minds.
me.

Will you

If not, we'll try your

All those in favor signify by saying -- excuse

Representative Belden.

REP. BELDEN:
Yes.
the lady.

Is that by mistake?

(113th)

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

Just in response to

The fiscal note and the OLR analysis is, in

fact, available.
on your desk.

Perhaps it's unfortunate that it's not

But it is available and copies are
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Thank you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Will you remark further on Senate A?
remark further on Senate A?
minds.

Will you

If not, we'll try your

All those in favor signify by saying aye?

REPRESENTATIVES:
Aye .
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Those opposed?
REPRESENTATIVES:
Nay.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
The aye's have it.

Senate A is adopted.

remark further on the bill as amended?
further on the bill as amended?
guests to the well of the House.

Will you

Will you remark

If not, staff and
Machine will be open.

CLERK:
The House of Representatives is voting by roll
call.

Members to the Chamber.

roll call.

The House is voting by

Members to the Chamber, please.

DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
If I might ask the members of the Chamber, the
board was not changed to reflect that you're voting on
the bill as amended.

As it looks now, it looks like

you'll be voting on Senate Amendment A.

006190
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If we can indulge your patience for a moment, we
will change it so that it will be Senate -- he's going
to change the board so that the board reads, the bill as
amended.

You're going to have re-vote.

Now, the

machine will be open.
CLERK:
The House of Representatives is voting by roll call
again.

Members to the Chamber.

The House is voting by

roll call.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Have all members voted?

Have all members voted?

If all the members have voted, please check the machine.
Make sure your vote is properly recorded.

The machine

will be locked and the Clerk will take a tally.

Clerk

will announce the tally.
CLERK:
Senate Bill 525 as amended by Senate Amendment
Schedule A in concurrence with the Senate.
Total Number Voting
Necessary for passage

147
74

Those Voting Yea

145

Those Voting Nay

2

Those absent and not voting

4

DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
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Will the Clerk please call Calendar 541.

CLERK:
On page 9, Calendar 541, Senate Bill Number 322, AN
ACT CONCERNING SECURED AND UNSECURED LENDING.

The

Senate has adopted Senate Amendment Schedule A.
Favorable Report of the Committee on Banks.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Representative Christ.
REP. CHRIST:

(11th)

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker, I move

acceptance of the Joint Committee's favorable report and
passage of the bill in concurrence with the Senate.
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
The question is on acceptance and passage in
concurrence with the Senate.
REP. CHRIST:

Will you remark further?

(11th)

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker, the Senate

passed a strike-all amendment, LCO -- the Clerk is in
possession of LCO-4101.

Would he read and may I be

allowed to summarize?
DEPUTY SPEAKER HYSLOP:
Clerk, please call LCO-4101, previously designated
Senate Amendment A, and Representative has asked leave
to summarize.
CLERK:

JOINT
STANDING
COMMITTEE
HEARINGS

FINANCE,
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AND
BONDING
PART 1
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Does that clarify the situation?
REP. ALTOBELLO:
DON DOWNES:

IV

Somewhat.

Thank you.

Yes, sir.

REP. McDONALD:

Are there any other questions?

Thank you, gentlemen.
DON DOWNES:

Thank you so much.

im

MICHAEL CICCHETTI:

>-m

REP. McDONALD: The next person on our agenda is Rich
Nicholson from the Department of Revenue Services
What we're going to do now, since we've used up
our hour, we're going to have to go every other
one. We've got five more government people. And
then I'll alternate it with the public.

l
(-

Thank you.

Good morning, sir.

l.

RICH NICHOLSON: Good morning, Representative McDonald
and Senator Looney, members of the Finance
Committee. I'm Richard --

I

I•

REP. McDONALD: Excuse me one minute. I just want to
say that when Senator Looney and some of the others
are jumping up, they're voting in Judiciary. He
has to go over and vote.

h—

RICH NICHOLSON:

k—

REP. McDONALD:

I- -

RICH NICHOLSON:

r»

REP. McDONALD:

f

That's why they move back and forth.
I didn't see that.
Okay?

Thank you.

RICH NICHOLSON: My name is Richard Nicholson. I'm
First Assistant Commissioner at the Department of
Revenue Services. I'm here to testify on^Senate
Bills 523, 524 and 525. And I've submitted written
"testimony. Let me give you some highlights from

k-

-

Oh, I --

•

ooo

i hi
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that testimony.
SB-523 -- most of these bills, I should say, are
"technical. But there are some that have some more
substantive provisions which I will try to
highlight.
SB-523 eliminates the notary requirement from nine
'tax types, which will now mean that all our tax
returns can be filed under penalties of false
statement, which means that it's much simpler for
the tax payer and simpler for the department.
SB-523 also simplifies the way tax warrants can be
served. It allows them to be served electronically
or by fax for those where there's intangible
property involved.
SB^52_4 converts all the standard industrial code
•references in the tax statutes from the SIC Codes
references to the North America ICS CODE reference.
So they will all go from the SIC Code references
to the NAICS references.
SB-524 also adds an exemption for controlling
interest transfer tax that parallels the exemption
that the General Assembly adopted last year for
transfers to LLC's, et cetera, for the conveyance
tax.

It also includes a very important provision to
allow a repayment of Connecticut income tax to a
tax payer who has filed a claim of right with the
Internal Revenue Services. And those are taxpayers
that, for whatever reason, have been overpaid
benefits, for instance, and have to repay those
benefits in a subsequent tax year. Under our
current law, they cannot get a refund from us
because of the way the Internal Revenue Code works.
This would allow us to parallel the Internal
Revenue Code treatment for those taxpayers.
SB-525 provides a mechanism to provide sales tax
'relief for start-up farmers. Those that are
entering into the field of agriculture can now get
sales tax relief in the beginning when they most
need it.
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It also changes the method of taxation for prepaid
phone cards from a point of use taxation, which is
the current -- and Connecticut currently is in the
minority of most states in that regard -- to a
point of sale. So when the prepaid phone card is
sold, it will now be subject to sales tax as
opposed to when the phone card is used wherever
it's used.
On that score, we have been talking to the
telecommunications industry and they are -- we are
working on some substitute language which we will
get to the committee from the original draft that
we submitted in our bill.
There's also a technical change to last year's
change -- last year's amendment to the nonprescription drugs which will in one respect put
that back where it was before we -- an unintended
consequence of our change last year.
And, finally, it also, SB-525, clarifies the
exemption for meals at"educational and health care
facilities to mirror the current treatment and to
ensure that the current exemption includes assisted
living facilities and day care facilities.
Thank you, Madam Chair.
REP. MCDONALD:
RICH NICHOLSON:
questions.

Thank you.
And I'll be pleased to answer

REP. McDONALD: Thank you for being so concise, because
a lot of these bills are very complicated.
One of the things in 5-- I guess you didn't get to
J52 7. Did you? On the gross earnings tax on
petroleum products, was that one of your bills?
RICH NICHOLSON:
REP. McDONALD:

No, it wasn't, Representative McDonald.
Okay.

Thank you.

We're going to -- we have another omnibus bill on

^3
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sales tax that people have been giving suggestions
on that we might cut out. One of my favorites is
caskets. I don't think people should have to pay
taxes. They're going into the ground. And so
we're going to have suggestions like that that -in our omnibus sales tax.
There's a lot of hands going up. My friend,
Representative Mordasky. I don't usually hear from
you, sir.
REP. MORDASKY:

Thank you, Madam Chair.

A question. Your exemption for start-up farmers, i i i i i .
would you take into consideration inherited farmers
who just inherited the farm through death? Would
that be a start-up farmer in your interpretation?
RICH NICHOLSON:
be.

Yes, Representative Mordasky, it would

REP. MORDASKY:

Thank you very much, sir.

REP. McDONALD:

Senator Penn.

SEN. PENN:

Thank you, Madam Chairman.

Good morning.
RICH NICHOLSON:

Good morning.

SEN. PENN: Would you tell me why Sub-section 19 is
included in 523?
RICH NICHOLSON: Senator, that is an amendment that
would allow the officers -- there are about 10
officers in the department who have arrest power
for criminal violations of the tax laws. And that
would allow those officers to be treated as peace
officers like any other officer that has the power
of arrest under the state of Connecticut. So,
therefore, someone who interferes with an arrest or
if there's an assault on this officer, they would
be treated like State Police or a local policeman
because they do have -SEN. PENN:

It's somewhat of an expansion of police
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requirement and furthers that goal.
We think that's sound logic. And we ask that you
reject this unfunded mandate.
CCM opposes as drafted Raised Bill 530, which is
the bill dealing with the historic cost assessment
of utility property for several reasons. We do
think the bill is an improvement over what you've
had before you in past years because it does exempt
electric-generation facilities. But we do think
that it sets out a series of special treatments for
utility companies that we think could pose harm to
municipalities.
And as one point we would like to make is this; and
that is if the municipal assessment is legal and
accurate, that the utility company should pay it.
In the case of the Meriden case that 1 s yet to be
adjudicated, as was discussed earlier, if the court
decides that that assessment was legal and
accurate, we think that it should be owed by the
utility company.
And we further think that utility companies should
be, as are all other taxpayers, subject to the
assessor's discretion as to a type of evaluation
they can use in assessing that property.
And we ask that you take no action on Bill 53 0.
And I thank you.
SEN. LOONEY:

Thank you.

Questions from committee members?
Going twice.

Going once.

Thanks very much.
GIANCARL CASA:

Thank you, Senator.

SEN. LOONEY: Okay. Next is Melissa Greenbacker, then
Brian Phelps, Cedric Woods and then Lloyd
Fravenglass.
MELISSA GREENBACKER:

Senator Looney, Representative
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McDonald and members of the Committee on Finance,
Revenue and Bonding, my name is Melissa
Greenbacker. And I am from a 415-acre dairy farm
in Durham, Connecticut. We milk 13 0 cows and crop
2 60 acres. Our family has been in agri-business
for many, many years and have been able to sustain
our dairy farm in part because of things such as
the farmer tax exemption permit.
But not all farmers are able to participate and use
this tool. I am a member of Connecticut Farm
Bureau. And Connecticut Farm Bureau respectfully
submits testimony in favor of SB-525 with specific
reference to changes and additions to Section 13,
Sub-division 63, of the Section 12-412 of the
General Statutes.
Connecticut Farm Bureau is a farm family
organization representing 4500 members. We believe
the changes and additions in the above statute will
allow for new producers who are entering farming to
receive a farmer tax exemption permit with
provisions that the new farmer will carry on
agricultural production or trade for at least two
years.
Current statute does not allow a farmer to get a
tax exemption permit unless previous gross receipts
for agricultural production can be submitted. This
has made it difficult for young people who are
getting started to receive the same benefit in
business as other farmers. The first few years in
any business are risky. And new producers want the
chance to be as competitive as other moreestablished agri-businesses.
We believe this change in statute will make
Connecticut a more friendly state to farm in and
would put young agri-business people on the same
playing field as others in the industry.
Thank you for the opportunity to testify on behalf
of Connecticut Farm Bureau. And please give
favorable passage to SB-525.
Thank you.
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SEN. LOONEY: Okay. Next is Cedric Woods, to be
followed by Lloyd Fravenglass and then Tom Kirk.
CEDRIC WOODS: Good afternoon, Senator Looney,
Representative McDonald, other members of the
Finance, Revenue and Bonding Committee. My name is
Cedric Woods and I am a Government Research Analyst
for the Mashantucket Pequot Tribal Nation, Office
of State Governmental Affairs.
I am here today to request an amendment to Raised
Bill No. 525, AN ACT MAKING CHANGES TO VARIOUS
SALES AND USE TAX STATUTES AND THE ADMISSIONS AND
DUES TAX STATUTES.
The amendment we are requesting is the modification
of the definition of "business entity" found in
Sub-Section 62 of Section 12-412 of the General
Statutes. This is in (I), the definition stage.
The recommended revision would read "Business
entity includes a corporation, trust, estate,
partnership, limited partnership, limited liability
partnership, limited liability company, singlemember limited liability company, sole
proprietorship, non-stock corporation and federally
recognized Indian tribe." That last would be the
amendment, the addition that we would request.
We believe that inclusion of the federally
recognized tribes in this definition would further
enhance the successful commercial relationship
between the tribes and the State of Connecticut and
allow tribes to benefit from the same exemptions as
corporate citizens.
Thank you for the opportunity to address this body.
I'd be happy to answer any questions at this time.
SEN. LOONEY:

Thank you, Mr. Woods.

Are there any questions from committee members?
If not -- yes.
REP. BELDEN:

Representative Belden.

Thank you, Chairman Looney.

0 0 0 11*2
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Do you have any idea of what the cost of this would
be to the State?
CEDRIC WOODS:
REP. BELDEN:

At present

—

Order of magnitude?

CEDRIC WOODS: Right. As you're aware, Representative
Belden, this is in regards to services given from a
corporation to a wholly-owned subsidiary. At
present, we do very little of this. This would be
something that we benefit us in the future.
If I had to make a guess -- and I've talked with Ed
Morault, our tax director here -- we may pay
somewhere in the order of several thousand dollars
now and that's it. We don't do a lot of services
for our subsidiaries at present. So it would have
a minimal impact at this time.
REP. BELDEN:
CEDRIC WOODS:
SEN. LOONEY:

Thank you.
Thank you.
Thank you very much.

Next is Lloyd Fravenglass, to be followed by Tom
Kirk and then Art Gilbert.
LLOYD FRAVENGLASS: Good afternoon, Senator Looney,
Representative Mcdonald. I'm Lloyd Fravenglass.
I'm Vice President of Singles Alternative Limited.
And we run Singles Dances under the d/b/a of For
Singles Only and been doing that for approximately
17 years.
I'm here to support the prior speakers in the
support of SB-529. But I'm requesting a similar
amendment that would apply to our group and similar
groups, which are groups that operate events in
association with or on the premises of
establishments subject to the cabaret tax prior to
July 1, 1999.
What happened, unknown to us, was that our tax was
doubled when that cabaret tax was eliminated
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Any other questions from committee members?
If not, thank you, Mr. Gillan.
TOM GILLAN:

Thank you.

I appreciate it.

SEN. LOONEY: Next is Tony Momicki. After Mr. Momicki
is Mike Campbell, to be followed by Joe McGee.
:
SEN. LOONEY:
:
SEN. LOONEY:
McGee.

Mr. Momicki isn't here.
Mr. Momicki is not here?

Okay.

Mr. Campbell's here, though.
Mr. Campbell.

Mr. Campbell and then Mr.

MIKE CAMPBELL: Good afternoon, Senator Looney,
Representative McDonald, members of the committee.
My name is Mike Campbell. And I'm President of
Bell Food Services in Glastonbury, Connecticut and
a member of the Board of Directors of the
Connecticut Vending Association.
I'm here today to give our support as an
association to Section 10, Sub-Section 9, of Raised
Bill No. 52 5, eliminate sales tax on the sale of
food products and meals, candy, confectionery and
beverages, except alcoholic beverages, in a student
dining hall, dormitory, fraternity or sorority
maintained in a private, public or parochial
school, college or university, to members of such
institutions in sale of food products, meals,
candy, confectionery and beverages to patients,
residents or care recipients in hospitals,
residential care homes, assisted living facilities,
senior centers, day care centers, convalescent
homes, nursing homes and rest areas.
Because the vending industry is a major supplier of
these products, our industry strongly supports this
legislation. I just might add my daughter is a
student at Eastern and does use the vending out
there. So it is an important part of what's
delivered and what is provided at those places.
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In addition, the Connecticut vending industry asks
this committee to remove the bracketed words "no
other" or, rather "other than" from Section 12412-13. And I have an attachment of that. And add
this change to Raised Bill 525.
Trying to separate candy and confectioneries from
all other snacks is extremely difficult for more
small vendors and also difficult for the Department
of Revenue Services during an audit. I know
firsthand. I've been there with that audit.
In a meeting with Ernest Adamo of the Department of
Revenue Services, our industry explained these
difficulties and we have demonstrated to him that
the cost to the State would be less than
$400,000.00. I believe he agrees it's both a
difficult audit process and the cost to the State.
Again, the Connecticut Vending Association supports
Section 9 of Raised Bill No. 525. Thanks for your
consideration of our request for the change in the
working of Section 12-412-013. Thank you.
SEN. LOONEY:

Thank you, Mr. Campbell.

Representative Beals.
REP. BEALS:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

In that section that I believe you just
Section 10, regarding the exemption for
confectionery and beverages, it says in
cafeteria. Does that mean -- does that
public school cafeterias?

alluded to,
candy,
a student
include

MIKE CAMPBELL: The way this is written it would. It
would unless they are under a different regulation
that prevents those products from being sold at
lunch time.
REP. BEALS: Well, I believe that in general they are
not sold at lunch time. But they might be sold at
other times.
MIKE CAMPBELL:

That's correct.

0 0 0 11*2
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We might hear from the CEA about

And then also in nursing homes. I'm less concerned
about the revenue loss than I am about the impact
on the people and whether there's really a need or
a benefit to removing this tax. I mean I think
that particularly with regard to school kids, it is
a problem. But I'm glad you clarified that.
MIKE CAMPBELL: I can -- I can take a stab at giving you
an explanation on that. And that is in most
schools the way it is today, they do a lot of fund
raising and things. Many of the products that we
sell, we provide back to those schools some income
for the use of the space and the electricity and
that sort of thing. So to a lot of them, they look
upon that as an income generator to help offset
either athletics or whatever else they may have
going on.
REP. BEALS: No. I understand that. And we've
sometimes tried to discourage it because of the way
the teachers find it impacts on the student
behavior. Anyway, that's another discussion for
another time.
MIKE CAMPBELL:
SEN. LOONEY:

Okay.

Understood.

Thank you. Representative Beals.

Thank you, Mr. Campbell.
MIKE CAMPBELL:

Thank you.

SEN. LOONEY: Next, and I believe finally, is Joe McGee,
who has patiently hung in with us to the very end.
JOE McGEE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm here to
support HB-5776, the single-factor allocation for
manufacturing. I just sort of wanted to add very
quickly on this is when we looked at the economy of
Fairfield County, which is basically our busiest
area, while the state is 17-percent manufacturing,
Fairfield County is still about 12-percent
manufacturing. And this bill which really shifts
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Good morning Senator Looney, Representative McDonald and members of the
Finance Committee. My name is Richard Nicholson. I am First Assistant
Commissioner and General Counsel for the Department of Revenue Services.
As you are aware, the Department has three bills before you today. Senate Bills
523, 524 and 525. Many of the provisions are technical, however, I would like to
highlight several substantive changes.
Senate Bill 523, A n A c t Facilitating A d m i n i s t r a t i o n of Various Tax Laws,
eliminates the notarization requirements for nine tax types. Elimination of this
requirement will mean less burden on the taxpayer, as they will not have to seek
out a notary public or commissioner of the Superior Court in order to comply.
These returns will be signed under the penalties of false statement, as are the
remainder of the returns filed with the Department. Also, the bill allows for
warrants to be issued electronically - either by e-mail or fax - in addition to being
conventionally served.
Senate Bill 524, A n A c t Making Changes and Corrections to the Various Tax
Statutes, i n c l u d i n g Corporation Tax, Utilities Gross Earnings Tax, Excise
Taxes and Personal Income Tax, contains numerous provisions that either
correct or further expand existing law (e.g., referencing NAICS Codes, North
American Industry Classifications, where SIC Codes currently exist, so that are
statutes are kept current). In addition, we have provided for an exemption from
Controlling Interest Transfer Taxes for any sale or transfer of a controlling
interest in an entity that effectuates a mere change of identity or form of
ownership. This provision is similar to the exemption from Real Estate
Conveyance Tax enacted into law last session.
The bill also provides for repayment of Connecticut income taxes paid under a
claim of right pursuant to Section 1341 (a)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Currently, Connecticut has no mechanism to allow a taxpayer to recoup taxes he
paid on income he received but ultimately had to repay back. An example would
be disability benefits which were included in his federal adjusted gross income for
a given year and which he paid both federal and state taxes on, but, because he
had to repay the money, he should not have had to pay taxes on it. The Internal
Revenue Services, under Section 1341(a)(4) of the Code has a mechanism in
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place to make the taxpayer whole. We believe Connecticut should have a similar
mechanism in place.
Lastly, Senate Bill 525, An Act Making Changes to Various Sales and Use
Tax Statutes ancnfie"Admissions and Dues Tax Statutes, will, hopefully,
provide relief for the start-up farmer and strengthen or clarify existing
exemptions.
As many of you know, the sales and use tax exemption permit for farmers, which
enables farmers to make purchases of tangible personal property tax-free, does
not currently provide a mechanism for the new or start-up farmer to avail himself
of the exemption. We have expanded existing language to enable the start-up
farmer to apply for and receive the permit at a time when he probably needs the
exemption the most - as he is establishing himself.
Also, the telecommunications industry is seeking a nationwide change in the
point of taxation of pre-paid phone cards. Currently, Connecticut imposes the tax
as the card is used. This bill seeks to impose the tax at the point of sale. The
industry has suggested we change our statutes to provide for point of sale as a
taxable service versus a taxable good. We will be submitting substitute language
to address this.
In addition to the items previously mentioned, we are also seeking to correct an
unintended change made last year when the language for non-prescription drugs
was amended. We unknowingly restricted the exemption to humans, while in the
past it was unrestricted.
We our looking to make the exemption for meals at educational and health care
facilities mirror current treatment and ensure that the types of places referenced
include assisted living facilities and day care centers.
Thank you for your consideration and, hopefully, favorable treatment of these
bills.
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AT&T Statement in Support
ofSenate Bill 525
Taxation of Prepaid Calling Services
Finance Committee
March 6, 2000

In the past few years, AT&T has joined many other telecommunications providers in supporting
legislative initiatives introduced across the country to change the point of taxation of prepaid calling
services from the time the service is utilized to the point at which the service is sold. Currently,
twenty-nine states and the District of Columbia tax prepaid calling services at point-of-sale. SB 525
contains a provision that would bring Connecticut's tax law into conformance with the majority of
these states. Accordingly, AT&T strongly supports the enactment of SB 525. However, the bill as
drafted raises some technical concerns.

AT&T has already shared these concerns with the

Department of Revenue Services and respectfully requests that the Committee adopt the technical
amendments proposed by AT&T and attached this written testimony.

The adoption of these

amendments will ensure the uniform taxation of all prepaid calling services in Connecticut.

Prepaid calling service includes prepaid calling cards and prepaid wireless services. These services
provide consumers with a right to make telephone calls paid for in advance. The consumer obtains
service with an allotted amount of calling time associated with the price paid. The service is not a
series of individual transactions. Rather, it is an integrated service that provides a right to make
future telephone calls. The prepaid calling account keeps track of the time spent on the call. Prepaid
services generally do not require credit. This eliminates any worry of post-usage billing. Prepaid
telecommunications makes services available to customers who would otherwise not qualify for the
service on a subscription basis. It also appeals to those customers who prefer to pay for services in
advance so they can better manage their telecommunications budget and also to travelers who do not
have a United States telephone account.

000190

Several tax issues arise with the sale and use of prepaid calling services. These include: deciding
whether the service should be taxed when used or at the point-of-sale; determining the proper tax
basis; determining which party should collect and remit the tax; and deciding the proper tax
jurisdiction to remit the tax. These burdensome administrative requirements increase the cost of
providing prepaid calling services. In addition, the lack of uniformity in the method for taxing these
services among the states oftentimes results in double taxation. Because of these compliance
difficulties, AT&T believes that many prepaid calling service providers are not accounting for usage
taxes or do not have the sufficient nexus required with the states to remit these taxes.

Such non-compliant firms have a tremendous competitive advantage over firms that must account for
usage taxes on prepaid calling services. Accordingly, Point-of-sale taxation will help level the
playing field.

Connecticut currently applies the sales tax at the time the caller uses the service. Collecting sales tax
on the retail sales price of the service at the point-of-sale is easier for both the retailer and the taxing
authority. A sales tax on the retail price at the point-of-sale of the card avoids the problems
associated with determining the proper tax base, an onerous record keeping burden. The retailer
would have all the necessary information to impose the proper tax - the retail price of the card, the
location of the sale and the applicable rate.

Senate Bill 525 recognizes the changing nature of the telecommunications industry. It proposes a tax
system that eliminates double taxation, eases compliance and administration burdens and levels the
playing field within the prepaid calling industry. I appreciate the opportunity to express AT&T's
views and respectively request that the Committee give Senate Bill 525 a joint favorable report.
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AN ACT MAKING CHANGES TO VARIOUS SALES AND USE TAX
STATUTES AND THE ADMISSIONS AND DUES TAX STATUTES
Sec. 1. Subdivision (2) of section 12-407 of the general statutes, as amended
by section 10 of public act 99-173 and section 10 of public act 99-285, is repealed
and the following is substituted in lieu thereof:
(2) "Sale" and "selling" mean and include: (a) Any transfer of title,
exchange or barter, conditional or otherwise, in any manner or by any means
whatsoever, of tangible personal property for a consideration; (b) any
withdrawal, except a withdrawal pursuant to a transaction in foreign or
interstate commerce, of tangible personal property from the place where it is
located for delivery to a point in this state for the purpose of the transfer of title,
exchange or barter, conditional or otherwise, in any mariner or by any means
whatsoever, of the property for a consideration; (c) the producing, fabricating,
processing, printing or imprinting of tangible personal property for a
i

consideration for consumers who furnish either directly or indirectly the
materials used in the producing, fabricating, processing, printing or imprinting,
including^ but not limited to, sign construction, photofinishing, duplicating and
photocopying; (d) the furnishing and distributing of tangible personal property
for a consideration by social clubs and fraternal organizations to their members
or others; (e) the furnishing, preparing, or serving for a consideration of food,
meals or drinks; (f) a transaction whereby the possession of property is
transferred but the seller retains the title as security for the payment of the price;
(g) a transfer for a consideration of the title of tangible personal property which
has been produced, fabricated or printed to the special order of the customer, or
of any publication, including but not limited to, sign construction,
photofinishing, duplicating and photocopying; (h) a transfer for a consideration
of the occupancy of any room or rooms in a hotel or lodging house for a period
of thirty consecutive calendar days or less; (i) the rendering of certain services for
a consideration, exclusive of such services rendered by an employee for [his] the
employer, as follows: (A) Computer and data processing services, including but
not limited to, time, and exclusive of services rendered in connection with the

00193
creation, development hosting or maintenance of all or part of a web site which is
part of the graphical, hypertext portion of the Internet, commonly referred to as
the World-Wide Web, (B) credit information and reporting services, (C) services
by employment agencies and agencies providing personnel services, (D) private
investigation, protection, patrol work, watchman and armored car services,
exclusive of services of off-duty police officers and off-duty fire fighters, (E)
painting and lettering services, (F) photographic studio services, (G) telephone
answering services, (H) stenographic services, (I) services to industrial,
commercial or income-producing real property, including but not limited to,
such services as management, electrical, plumbing, painting and carpentry and
excluding any such services rendered in the voluntary evaluation, prevention,
treatment, containment or removal of hazardous waste, as defined in section 22a115, or other contaminants of air, water or soil, provided income-producing
property shall not include property used exclusively for residential purposes in
which the owner resides and which contains no more than three dwelling units,
or a housing facility for low and moderate income families and persons owned
or operated by a nonprofit housing organization, as defined in subsection (29) of
section 12-412, (J) business analysis, management, management consulting and
public relations services, excluding any environmental consulting services, (K)
services providing "piped-in" music to business or professional establishments,
(L) flight instruction and chartering services by a certificated air carrier on an
aircraft, the use of which for such purposes, but for the provisions of subsection
(4) of section 12-410 and subsection (12) of section 12-411, would be deemed a
retail sale and a taxable storage or use, respectively, of such aircraft by such
carrier, (M) motor vehicle repair services, including any type of repair, painting
or replacement related to the body or any of the operating parts of a motor
vehicle, (N) motor vehicle parking, including the provision of space, other than
metered space, in a lot having thirty or more spaces, excluding (i) space in a
seasonal parking lot provided by a person who is exempt from taxation under
this chapter pursuant to subsection (1), (5) or (8) of section 12-412, (ii) space in a
parking lot owned or leased under the terms of a lease of not less than ten years'
duration and operated by an employer for the exclusive use of its employees, (iii)
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valet parking provided at any airport, and (iv) space in municipally-operated
railroad parking facilities in municipalities located within an area of the state
designated as a severe nonattainment area for ozone under the federal Clean Air
Act, (O) radio or television repair services, (P) furniture reupholstering and
repair services, (Q) repair services to any electrical or electronic device, including
but not limited to, such equipment used for purposes of refrigeration or airconditioning, (R) lobbying or consulting services for purposes of representing the
interests of a client in relation to the functions of any governmental entity or
instrumentality, (S) services of the agent of any person in relation to the sale of
any item of tangible personal property for such person, exclusive of the services
of a consignee selling works of art, as defined in subsection (b) of section 12-376c,
or articles of clothing or footwear intended to be worn on or about the human
body other than (i) any special clothing or footwear primarily designed for
athletic activity or protective use and which is not normally worn except when
used for the athletic activity or protective use for which it was designed and (ii)
jewelry, handbags, luggage, umbrellas, wallets, watches and similar items
carried on or about the human body but not worn on the body in the manner
characteristic of clothing intended for exemption under subdivision (47) of
section 12-412, under consignment, exclusive of services provided by an
auctioneer, (T) locksmith services, (U) advertising or public relations services,
including layout, art direction, graphic design, mechanical preparation or
production supervision, not related to the development of media advertising or
cooperative direct mail advertising, (V) landscaping and horticulture services,
(W) window cleaning services, (X) maintenance services, (Y) janitorial services,
(Z) exterminating services, (AA) swimming pool cleaning and maintenance
services, (BB) renovation and repair services as set forth in this subparagraph, to
other than industrial, commercial or income-producing real property: Paving of
any sort, painting or staining, wallpapering, roofing, siding and exterior sheet
metal work, (CC) miscellaneous personal services included in industry group 729
in the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, United States Office of
Management and Budget, 1987 edition, or U.S. industry 532220, 812191, 812199
or 812990 in the North American Industrial Classification System United States
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manual, United States Office of management and Budget, 1997 edition, exclusive
of (i) services rendered by massage therapists licensed pursuant to chapter 384a,
and (ii) services rendered by a hypertrichologist licensed pursuant to chapter
388, (DD) any repair or maintenance service to any item of tangible personal
property including any contract of warranty or service related to any such item,
(EE) business analysis, management or managing consulting services rendered
by a general partner, or an affiliate thereof, to a limited partnership, provided (i)
that the general partner, or an affiliate thereof, is compensated for the rendition
of such services other than through a distributive share of partnership profits or
an annual percentage of partnership capital or assets established in the limited
partnership's offering statement, and (ii) the general partner, or an affiliate
thereof, offers such services to others, including any other partnership. As used
in subparagraph (EE)(i) "an affiliate of a general partner" means an entity which
is directly or indirectly owned fifty per cent or more in common with a general
partner, and (FF) notwithstanding the provisions of section 12-412, except
subsection (87) thereof, patient care services, as defined in subsection [(30)] (29)
of this section by a hospital; (j) the leasing or rental of tangible personal property
of any kind whatsoever, including but not limited to, motor vehicles, linen or
towels, machinery or apparatus, office equipment and data processing
equipment, provided for purposes of this subdivision and the application of sales
and use tax to contracts of lease or rental of tangible personal property, the
leasing or rental of any motion picture film by the owner or operator of a motion
picture theater for purposes of display at such theater shall not constitute a sale
within the meaning of this subsection; (k) the rendering of telecommunications
service, as defined in subsection (26) of this section, for a consideration on or
after January 1,1990, exclusive of any such service rendered by an employee for
his employer, subject to the provisions related to telecommunications service in
accordance with section 12-407a; (1) the rendering of community antenna
television service, as defined in subsection (27) of this section, for a consideration
on or after January 1,1990, exclusive of any such service rendered by an
employee for his employer; (m) the transfer for consideration of space or the
right to use any space for the purpose of storage or mooring of any
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noncommercial vessel, exclusive of dry or wet storage or mooring of such vessel
during the period commencing on the first day of November in any year to and
including the thirtieth day of April of the next succeeding year; (n) the sale for
consideration of naming rights to any place of amusement, entertainment or
recreation within the meaning of subdivision (3) of section 12-540; (o) the transfer
for consideration of prepaid telephone calling services and the recharge of
prepaid telephone calling services, as defined in subsection (31) of this section, if
the sale or recharge of a prepaid telephone calling service does not take place at
the vendor7s place of business, the sale or recharge shall be conclusively
determined to take place at the customer"s shipping address, or if there is no item
shipped, at the customer7s billing address or the location associated with the
customer's mobile telephone number. Wherever in this chapter reference is made
to the sale of tangible personal property or services, it shall be construed to
include sales described in this subsection, except as may be specifically provided
to the contrary.
Sec. 2. Subdivision (13) of section 12 407 of the general statutes, as amended
by section 10 of public act 99 173 and section 10 of public act 99 285 and sections
2 and 3 of this act, is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof:

Sec. 32. Subsection (26) of section 12-407 of the general statutes, as amended
by section 10 of public act 99-173 and section 10 of public act 99-285 and sections
1 and 3 of this act, is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof:
(26) (a) "Telecommunications service" means the transmission of any
interactive electromagnetic communications including but not limited to voice,
image, data and any other information, by means of but not limited to wire,
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cable, including fiber optical cable, microwave, radio wave or any combinations
of such media, and the leasing of any such service. "Telecommunications service"
includes but is not limited to basic telephone service, including any facility or
service provided in connection with such basic telephone service, toll telephone
service and teletypewriter or computer exchange service, including but not
limited to residential and business service, directory assistance, two-way cable
television service, cellular mobile telephone or telecommunication service,
specialized mobile radio and pagers and paging service, including any form of
mobile two-way communication. "Telecommunications service" does not include
(1) nonvoice services in which computer processing applications are used to act
on the information to be transmitted, (2) any one-way radio or television
broadcasting transmission, (3) any telecommunications service (A) rendered by a
company in control of such service when rendered for private use within its
organization (B) used, allocated or distributed by a company within its
organization, including in such organization affiliates, as defined in section 33840, for the purpose of conducting business transactions of the organization if
such service is purchased or leased from a company rendering
telecommunications service and such purchase or lease is subject to tax under
this chapter, and (4) access or interconnection service purchased by a provider of
telecommunications service from another provider of such service for purposes
of rendering such service, provided the purchaser submits to the seller a
certificate attesting to the applicability of this exclusion, upon receipt of which
the seller is relieved of any tax liability for such sale so long as the certificate is
taken in good faith by the seller.
(b) For purposes of the tax imposed under this chapter (1) gross receipts from
the rendering of telecommunications service shall include any subscriber line
charge or charges as required by the Federal Communications Commission and
any charges for access service collected by any person rendering such service
unless otherwise excluded from such gross receipts under this chapter and (2)
gross receipts from the rendering of telecommunications service shall not include
any local charge for calls from public or semipublic telephones; and (3) gross
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receipts from the rendering of telecommunications service shall not include any
charge for amount attributable to calls purchased with prepaid telephone calling
eardsservices, as defined in subsection (31) of this section-S-ef this act.
Sec. 43. Section 12-407 of the general statutes, as amended by section 10 of
public act 99-173 and section 10 of public act 99-285 and sections 1 and 2 of this
act, is amended by adding a new subsection as follows:
(NEW) (31) "Prepaid telephone calling eardservice" means the right to
exclusively purchase telecommunication services, that must be paid for in
advance, that enables the origination of calls using an access number and/or any
card or other similar arrangement, including prepaid authorization
numbcrscode, which permits the holder to obtain telecommunications service

provided that the remaining amount of units of service that have been pre-paid
shall be known on a continuous basis.
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The Ring of Quality

Senator Martin Looney
Representative Anne McDonald
Chairpersons, Finance, Revenue and Bonding
Committee and Committee Members
March 6, 2000
My name is Mike Campbell; I am President of Beli Food Services in Glastonbury
CT and a member of the Board of Directors of the Connecticut Vending Association.
I am here today to give our support to Section 10, subsection (9) of raised Bill No.
525 to eliminate Sales Tax on the sale of food products and meals, candy, confectionery
and beverages, except alcoholic beverages in a student dining-hall, dormitory, fraternity
or sorority maintained in a private, public or parochial school, college or University, to
members of such institutions or organization and sales of food products, [and] meals,
candy, confectionery and beverages to patients, residents or care recipients in hospitals,
residential care homes, assisted living facilities, senior centers, day care centers,
convalescent homes, nursing homes and rest homes.
Because the Vending Industry is a major supplier of these products, our industry
strongly supports this legislation.
In addition, The Connecticut Vending Industry asks this committee to remove the
bracketed words [other than] from Section 12-412 (13); See attached, and add this change
to Raised Bill No. 525.
Trying to separate candy and confectioneries from all other snacks is extremely
difficult for most small vendors and also difficult for the Department of Revenue
Services during an audit. I know first hand, I've been there.
In a meeting with Ernest Adamo of the Department of Revenue Services, our
industry explained the difficulties we have and demonstrated to him that the cost to the
State would be less than 5400,000.00. I believe he agrees with both the difficult audit
process and the cost to the State.
Again, The Connecticut Vending Association supports Section 9, Raised Bill No.
525 and thanks you for consideration of our request for a change in the wording in
Section 12-412 (13).
Resnentfiillv Submitted

President and CEO
Bell Food Services

98 COMMERCE STREET / GLASTONBURY, CT 06033-2360 / TELEPHONE (860) 633-4663
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Section 12-412(13)
Sales of food products for human consumption. "Food products"
include cereals and cereal products, milk and milk products,
oleomargarine, meat and meat products, fish and fish products,
eggs and egg products, vegetables and vegetable products, fruit
and fruit products, spices and salt, sugar and sugar products,
[other than] candy and confectionery; coffee and coffee
substitutes, tea, cocoa and cocoa products [other than] candy and
confectioner/.
Purpose: to include candy & confectioneries to the list of food
items exempted from the sales tax when sold from a vending
machine.
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Good morning, Senator Looney, Representative McDonald, Senator Daily,
Representative Altobello, Senator Nickers, Representative Belden, and other Finance,
Revenue and Bonding Committee Members. M y name is Cedric Woods and l am a
Government Research Analyst for the Mashantucket Pequot Tribal Nation, Office of
State Governmental Affairs.
I am here to request one amendment to Raised Bill No. 525, An Act Making Changes to
Various Sales and Use Tax Statutes And The Admissions And Dues Tax Statutes.
The amendment w e are requesting is the modification of the definition of business entity
found in (I) of part B, subsection (62) of section 12-412 of the general statutes. The
recommended revision would read:
(i)

"business entity" includes a corporation, trust, estate, partnership, limited
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited liability company, single member
limited liability company, sole proprietorship, nonstock corporation, and federally
recognized Indian tribe;

W e believe that inclusion of the federally recognized tribes in this definition would
further enhance the successful commercial relationship between the tribes and the state
and allow tribes to benefit from the same exemptions as other corporate citizens.
Thank you for the opportunity to address this body. I would be happy to answer any
questions.
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Connecticut

Farm Bureau Association,

Inc.

510 Pigeon Hill Road • Windsor, CT 06095-2141 • (860) 298-4400 • Fax (860) 298-4408

Testimony for Public Hearing

SB 525, An Act Making Changes to Various Sales and Use Tax Statutes and the Admissions
and Dues Tax Statutes
March 6, 2000

CT Farm Bureau respectfully submits testimony in favor of SB 525, with specific reference to
changes and additions to Sec 13. Subdivision (63) of the section 12-412 of the General Statutes.
CT Farm Bureau is a farm family organization representing 4500 members. We believe the
changes and additions in the above statute will allow for new producers who are entering farming
to receive a farmer tax exemption permit, with provisions that the new farmer will carry on
agricultural production or trade for at least two years. Current statute does not allow a farmer to
get a tax exemption permit unless previous gross receipts for agricultural production can be
submitted.

This has made it difficult for young people who are getting started to receive the same benefits in
business as other farmers. The first few years in any business are risky, and new producers want
the chance to be as competitive as other more established agribusinesses. We believe this change
in statute will make Connecticut a more friendly state to farm in, and will put young agribusiness
people the same playing field as others in the industry.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify on behalf of CT Farm Bureau, and please give favorable
passage to SB 525.

